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0 UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT FOR THE DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA UNITED STATES OF AMERICA::
Case No. 1:21-cr-00629 (EGS) v.:: JASON MICHAEL COMEAU,:: Defendant.: GOVERNMENT'S SENTENCING
MEMORANDUM The United States of America, by and through its attorney, the United States Attorney for the
District of Columbia, respectfully submits this sentencing memorandum in connection with the above-captioned
matter. For the reasons set forth herein, the government requests that this Court sentence Jason Michael
Comeau ("Comeau") to 20 days' jail, 36 months' probation, 60 hours of community service, and $500 in
restitution. I. Introduction The defendant, Jason Comeau, a 40-year-old co-owner of a Florida landscaping
company, participated in the January 6, 2021 attack on the United States Capitol—a violent attack that forced an
interruption of the certification of the 2020 Electoral College vote count, threatened the peaceful transfer of power
after the 2020 Presidential election, injured more than one hundred police officers, and resulted in more than one
million dollars' of property damage. Comeau pleaded guilty to one count of violating 40 U.S.C. § 5104(e)(2)(G):
Parading, Demonstrating, or Picketing in the Capitol Building. As explained herein, a sentence of 20 days'
incarceration is appropriate in this case because Comeau: (1) contemplated scaling a wall to get inside the
Capitol, a possibility that should have made his lack of permission to enter clear; (2) joined a mob chanting
outside the entrance to the House Chamber, threatening Congress and 1 0 indicating intent to disrupt the
certification vote; and (3) while cooperative in some respects, minimized certain aspects of his conduct at other
times, indicating some need for specific deterrence and punishment to promote the rule of law. Comeau saw his
efforts that day as "taking the Capitol." He entered the Capitol and remained inside for at least 25 minutes,
joining the mob chanting outside locked doors to the House Chamber. After the shooting of Ashli Babbit, police
began clearing the area, and Comeau left the building. When the FBI approached him in January, 2021, Comeau
admitted he had entered the building although, even at his change of plea hearing, he continued to claim that the
police had allowed him inside (although he ultimately acknowledged and agreed with the Statement of Offense,
where he admits he lacked permission). The Court must also consider that Comeau's conduct on January 6, like
the conduct of scores of other defendants, took place in the context of a large and violent riot that relied on
numbers to overwhelm law enforcement, breach the Capitol, and disrupt the proceedings. But for his actions
alongside so many others, the riot likely would have failed to disrupt the certification vote. Here, Comeau's
participation in a riot that actually succeeded in halting the Congressional certification combined with his
participation in a mob that terrorized members of Congress and his continued minimization and justification of his
conduct renders a period of incarceration necessary. II. Factual and Procedural Background The January 6,
2021 Attack on the Capitol As background, the government refers to the general summary of the attack on the
U.S. Capitol. See ECF No. 21 (Statement of Offense), at ¶ 1-7. As this Court knows, a riot cannot occur without
rioters, and each rioter's actions – from the most mundane to the most violent – 2 0 contributed, directly and
indirectly, to the violence and destruction of that day. With that backdrop we turn to Comeau's conduct and
behavior on January 6. Jason Comeau's Role in the January 6, 2021 Attack on the Capitol On January 4, 2021,
Jason Comeau traveled with his father to Washington, D.C., from his home in Florida to attend the "Stop the
Steal" rally in support of former President Trump. Comeau attended the rally on January 6. At its end, Comeau
saw thousands of people begin walking toward the Capitol Building. He and his father joined them, and filmed
cell phone videos along the way, some of which he later posted to Facebook. In one video, Comeau commented,
"did you see that they breached the Capitol building?" He later said, "Patriotism is the opposite of liberalism."
Once he arrived at the Capitol, Comeau entered the restricted area. At approximately 2:13 p.m., approaching the
building, he filmed a video, narrating, "we're taking the Capitol, guys." He joined in chants of "stop the steal!" and
walked forward, past metal barriers. Explosions were audible. Comeau walked toward rioters climbing a wall, at
the top of which were stairs leading toward entrances to the Capitol Building, and said, "I might have to Spider-
man it," and "I'm gonna climb that." He said to his father, "I don't know if you can make this." Leaving his father
behind, by 2:28 p.m., Comeau had entered the Capitol Building. He passed through the Crypt (where he filmed
another video, during which he commented, "we made it inside!") and Statuary Hall before arriving at the
Statuary Hall Connector, which leads to the House of Representatives chamber. Comeau joined a large mob
gathered outside the locked door to the chamber and joined in chants of "stop the steal!" Ex. A (video clip) at
0:40 (Comeau visible at 0:55-0:58). Various members of the crowd yelled at the front of the mob that they should
break down the door and knock the windows out using their ballistic gear – helmets and "kevlar." Id. at 3 0 0:29,
1:00, 2:00. Another shouted that he had a knife. Id. at 1:10. Others called on the mob to "push!". Id. at 1:30-1:39.
The mob also chanted "break it down!" Id. at 3:12-3:26. Figure 1 Having not succeeded in breaching the front
entrance to the House Chamber, members of the mob broke off and moved down a hallway toward the
Speaker's Lobby, another potential path to the House Chamber. There, Ashli Babbit was shot. Soon after the
shooting, Metropolitan Police Department officers began directing rioters gathered in the hallways near the
House Chamber toward an exit from the Capitol Building. Below is a screenshot from one officer's body-worn
camera showing Comeau in the hallway just before officers began to clear the area. 4 0 Figure 2 At
approximately 2:55 p.m., Comeau walked out of the Capitol Building. As the PSR describes, Comeau later called
his brother, an FBI agent, and admitted to entering the Capitol. PSR ¶ 22. Jason Comeau's Interview On January
18, 2021, Comeau agreed to speak to an FBI Task Force Officer (TFO) who came to his residence. Comeau
explained that he traveled from Florida to Washington to attend former President Trump's rally. After spending a
day sightseeing in the city (it was his first visit there), he attended the rally on January 6, starting at around 8:00
a.m. Toward the end of the rally, Comeau joined a large group (several thousand people, Comeau estimated),
who walked to the U.S. Capitol. Once the group arrived, Comeau said he squeezed past others to access a
staircase and get a better view of the size of the crowd. Comeau described standing on the steps 5 0 and seeing
U.S. Capitol Police standing in front of an open door to the Capitol. After several minutes of the crowds chanting
"let us in!", the police moved to the side, and rioters entered the Capitol. Comeau told the FBI that he thought he
was allowed inside because he had seen police officers step aside and others enter before him. He said he had
entered the Capitol only because he thought officers had allowed the rioters to enter. Comeau described the
inside of the Capitol as packed; he said that he could barely move. He said that, after a few minutes inside, he
observed officers asking people to leave and moving the crowd back outside. He falsely told the TFO that he had



only been in a "hallway" before being asked to leave. He said that, once he observed individuals climbing walls
and yelling, he left the area so that he would not be hurt or involved in any illegal activities. The TFO
characterized Comeau as "very apologetic and cooperative," but the FBI had not yet gathered and analyzed all
the evidence indicating that Comeau had actually spent at least 25 minutes inside the Capitol, joined in chanting,
moved through multiple floors of the building, and contemplated climbing a wall to gain entry to the building. The
Charges and Plea Agreement On October 13, 2021, Jason Comeau was charged by complaint with violating 18
U.S.C. §§ 1752(a)(1) and (2) and 40 U.S.C. §§ 5104(e)(2)(D) and (G). On October 14, 2021, Comeau was
arrested at his home in Florida. On October 15, Comeau was charged by four-count information with violations of
18 U.S.C. §§ 1752(a)(1) and (2) and 40 U.S.C. §§ 5104(e)(2)(D) and (G). On December 21, 2021, he pleaded
guilty to Count Four of the Information, charging him with a violation of 40 U.S.C. § 5104(e)(2)(G), violent entry
and disorderly conduct - parading, demonstrating, or picketing in any of the Capitol Buildings. By plea
agreement, Comeau agreed to pay $500 in restitution to the Department of the Treasury. At the plea hearing, 6 0
Comeau again suggested that he had permission to enter the building, before ultimately agreeing, consistent
with the Statement of Offense he signed, that he did not. III. Statutory Penalties Comeau now faces a sentencing
for a single violation of 40 U.S.C. § 5104(e)(2)(G). As noted by the plea agreement and the U.S. Probation
Office, Comeau faces up to six months of imprisonment and a fine of up to $5,000. He must also pay restitution
under the terms of his or her plea agreement. See 18 U.S.C. § 3663(a)(3); United States v. Anderson, 545 F.3d
1072, 1078- 79 (D.C. Cir. 2008). As this offense is a Class B Misdemeanor, the Sentencing Guidelines do not
apply to it. 18 U.S.C. § 3559; U.S.S.G. §1B1.9. IV. Sentencing Factors Under 18 U.S.C. § 3553(a) In this
misdemeanor case, sentencing is guided by 18 U.S.C. § 3553(a), which identifies the factors a court must
consider in formulating the sentence. Some of those factors include: the nature and circumstances of the
offense, § 3553(a)(1); the history and characteristics of the defendant, id.; the need for the sentence to reflect the
seriousness of the offense and promote respect for the law, § 3553(a)(2)(A); the need for the sentence to afford
adequate deterrence, § 3553(a)(2)(B); and the need to avoid unwarranted sentence disparities among
defendants with similar records who have been found guilty of similar conduct. § 3553(a)(6). In this case, as
described below, the Section 3553(a) factors weigh in favor of a short term of incarceration. A. The Nature and
Circumstances of the Offense The attack on the U.S. Capitol, on January 6, 2021 was a criminal offense
unparalleled in American history. It represented a grave threat to our democratic norms; indeed, it was one of the
only times in our history when the building was literally occupied by hostile participants. By its very nature, the
attack defies comparison to other events. 7 0 While each defendant should be sentenced based on their
individual conduct, each person who entered the Capitol on January 6 without authorization did so under the
most extreme of circumstances. As they entered the Capitol, they would—at a minimum—have crossed through
numerous barriers and barricades and heard the throes of a mob. Depending on the timing and location of their
approach, they also may have observed extensive fighting with law enforcement officials and smelled chemical
irritants in the air. No rioter was a mere tourist that day. Additionally, while looking at Comeau's individual
conduct, we must assess such conduct on a spectrum. This Court, in determining a fair and just sentence on this
spectrum, should look to a number of critical factors, to include: (1) whether, when, how the defendant entered
the Capitol building; (2) whether the defendant encouraged violence; (3) whether the defendant encouraged
property destruction; (4) the defendant's reaction to acts of v
























































